
Public Safety, Health, and Environment Committee – September 13, 2021   Page 1 of 2 

 

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

PUBLIC SAFETY, HEALTH, AND ENVIRONMENT 

COMMITTEE 
COUNCIL BRIEFING ROOM, 300 W. MAIN STREET 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 13, 2021 AT 3:00 PM 

AGENDA 

The meeting will be held at City Hall, Council Briefing Room, 300 W. Main St, Grand Prairie, 

Texas.  Some or all of the council members may participate remotely via video conference. 

CALL TO ORDER 

AGENDA ITEMS 

1. Minutes of the August 2, 2021 Public Safety, Health and Environment Committee Meeting 

2. 24th Quarterly Judicial Report 

3. Animal Services Briefing on Adoptions 

4. Ordinance Amending Chapter 13 “Health and Sanitation,” of the Code of Ordinances of the City 

of Grand Prairie, Texas, by amending sections of Article XXIII “Stormwater Discharges” 

relating to “Construction Activity Prohibitions and Requirements” and “Releases”  

5. Ordinance Amending Chapter 13, “Health and Sanitation” of the Code of Ordinances of the City 

of Grand Prairie, Texas, by replacing the provisions of Article 10 “Cross Connection Control and 

Prevention” in their entirety with new regulations 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

Citizens may speak during Citizen Comments for up to five minutes on any item not on the agenda by 

completing and submitting a speaker card. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Public Safety, Health, and Environment Committee may conduct a closed session pursuant to Chapter 

551, Subchapter D of the Government Code, V.T.C.A., to discuss any of the following: 

(1)        Section 551.071 “Consultation with Attorney” 

(2)        Section 551.072 “Deliberation Regarding Real Property” 

(3)        Section 551.074 “Personnel Matters” 

(4)        Section 551.087 “Deliberations Regarding Economic Development Negotiations.”  

ADJOURNMENT 

The Grand Prairie City Hall is accessible to people with disabilities. If you need assistance in 

participating in this meeting due to a disability as defined under the ADA, please call 972 237 8035 or 

email Gloria Colvin (gcolvin@gptx.org) at least three (3) business days prior to the scheduled meeting to 

request an accommodation. 

1



Public Safety, Health, and Environment Committee – September 13, 2021   Page 2 of 2 

Certification 

In accordance with Chapter 551, Subchapter C of the Government Code, V.T.C.A, the Public Safety, 

Health, and Environment Committee agenda was prepared and posted September 10, 2021. 

 

Gloria Colvin, Deputy City Secretary 

 

 

2



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 09/13/2021 

REQUESTER: Lana Yancey 

PRESENTER: Jorja Clemson, Chairwoman 

TITLE: Public Safety, Health and Environment Committee Meeting Minutes 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Minutes are attached. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3

Item 1.



Public Safety, Health, and Environment Committee – August 02, 2021   Page 1 of 3 

 

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

PUBLIC SAFETY, HEALTH, AND ENVIRONMENT 

COMMITTEE 
CITY HALL - COUNCIL BRIEFING ROOM, 300 W. MAIN STREET 

MONDAY, AUGUST 02, 2021 AT 3:00 PM 

MINUTES 

CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 

 

Chairwoman Jorja Clemson 

Council Member Dennis King 

Council Member Junior Ezeonu 

 

AGENDA ITEMS 

1. Public Safety, Health and Environment Committee Meeting Minutes 

Minutes passed unanimously.  

2. Briefing on City Fireworks Ordinance 

Police Chief Daniel Scesney along with Fire Chief Robert Fite briefed the committee on this 

item. The issues we are facing with fireworks being shot in our city is that anyone 16 years of 

age or older can purchase professional fireworks. It is a very easy process to obtain a permit to 

set up a fireworks stand in the county and sell these professional fireworks. We had a 1200% 

increase in fireworks calls into dispatch this year. We also had some employees from the fire 

department patrolling areas in Grand Prairie to talk with people about the fireworks. The police 

department seized about 4X the amount of fireworks than normal. The city ordinance has 

competitive fines and I don't think raising the fines is the answer. Although if we wanted to 

look into that Judge Arnold can make that decision. The Police Department posted about 

fireworks being illegal in the city limits on social media but next year we will work on stronger 

language and a video in order to get our point across a little better. 

3. Briefing on National Night Out Kickoff 

Public Information Officer Chelsea Kretz briefed the committee on this item. This year we are 

trying to get the community back into the groove of National Night Out and let everyone know 

that were are going back to the block. Registration is open online and we are also having a Kick 

Off Party Saturday, August 28th on the Epic Lawn. This is a free event for people to attend in 

which there will be food trucks, Pet adoptions and a lot of our local organizations out to 

educate the public on the different opportunities. No further. 

 

 

4

Item 1.



Public Safety, Health, and Environment Committee – August 02, 2021   Page 2 of 3 

4. Smoking Ordinance Comparisons 

Senior Environmental Specialist Werner Rodriguez briefed the committee on this item. Several 

years ago we updated the smoking ordinance, but grandfathered some businesses in. This didn't 

get us to where we want to be which is 100% smoke free. Smoking is the #2 killer in the world 

so we are really looking at this ordinance due to the health factors. Currently the smoking 

ordinance does not allow smoking in public places but does allow smoking in tobacco shops, 

stand alone bars, private clubs, hotels and motels with designated rooms, Lone Star Park, 

outdoor dining areas, bowling centers, bingo parlors, places of employment and Loyd Park 

campsites, Lynn Creek Park and on course areas of city golf facilities. Over recent years the 

smoking ordinances in Texas have become more restrictive. Staff recommendations is to 

require the grandfathered businesses to be non smoking, which would make Grand Prairie 

100% smoke free. Council Member Junior agrees due to the health issues. This item will also 

be on the City Council Agenda in September.  

5. SNC210801 – Street Name Change – NW 19th Street and SW 19th Street to M L King Jr 

Blvd (City Council District 1 & 5). Street Name Change request to change NW 19th Street 

and SW 19th Street to M L King Jr Blvd 

Deputy City Manager Bill Hills briefed this committee on this item. The street name change 

was brought to Mr. Hills by Mayor Jensen, Council Member Jorja Clemson and Dr. Denny 

Davis. There was a meeting last Thursday to discuss the street name change and the attendees 

to include the City Streets Department and all the area pastors were all in agreeance that 19th 

street should be the street that receives the name change. This street dead ends into David 

Daniels Elementary who has the first black principal in the school district and is the gateway 

into the Dalworth Community which was the first black settlement in Grand Prairie. On August 

5th at the Dalworth Recreation Center there will be a public meeting to introduce this to the 

community. We will also go over the design of the street sign that will be in accordance with 

city requirements. Martin Luther King will be spelled out on the street sign and there will be a 

"N" for North and "S" for South to keep that designation. We have also sent letters out to the 

community to notify of any businesses/residents that will be affected by address changes.  City 

Council will have a public hearing on August 17th to announce the new street name. There will 

be a dedication ceremony on August 28th at David Daniels Elementary for everyone in the 

Community to attend. All board members are in favor of this street name change. No further. 

 

6. A public hearing regarding the FY 2020 CARES Act Grant to approve a Resolution 

authorizing the City Manager to submit a change to the scope of Fiscal Year 2020 grant 

application with the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) for $3,852,325 for operating/ 

capital for vehicle for hire service.  The City will provide no matching requirement of the 

$3,852,325.  The total budget to operate the vehicle for hire is 3,852,325 for one or more 

years 

Director of Transportation Walter Shumac introduced Tony Flowers who is leading this 

project. Information on a microstransit/ride share program, also known as VIA was discussed 

with the understanding that it will not interfere or replace Grand Connection in any way. We 

have been looking at public transportation in Grand Prairie for over 20 years. VIA is being used 

in over 700 cities to include Arlington who averages 50,000 to 70,000 trips per year. The 

Government has allotted Grand Prairie to receive 3.8 million dollars for transportation for hire 

which will further our charter system. The VIA program is for anyone in the city to use, not just 

5

Item 1.



Public Safety, Health, and Environment Committee – August 02, 2021   Page 3 of 3 

senior citizens and will also travel outside the city to surrounding Universities and Hospitals.  

The most common age group to use VIA is between 18 and 35 years. The City of Grand Prairie 

does not have to pay anything out of pocket for this program. We will need the City Manager 

and City Council to approve the change of scope of the funding from Operating Costs to 

Operating/Capital Costs. IF we use 10 VIA units to operate in Grand Prairie the cost will be 1.8 

million dollars, if we add 5 units it will cost us 2.6 million. Since this is our first year we are 

going to go with 10 VIA units to see how it goes, but we can always add more if needed. Cost 

per ride each way is $3.50 to $4.00 and service hours are Monday thru Saturday 6 a.m. to 9 

p.m. We have to use this CARES act money or we lose it in 2023, after the money is gone we 

will apply for a 80/20 grant in which the government will pay for 80 percent and the City of 

Grand Prairie will pay for 20% of the next year VIA usage. Staff presentation to Council will 

be September 7th.  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

There was no executive session. 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

There were no citizen comments. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Meeting adjourned at 4:32 p.m. 

 

 
 

 

 

Jorja Clemson, Chairwoman 

 

 

6

Item 1.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 09/13/2021 

REQUESTER: Olivia Tucker 

PRESENTER: Bryan S. Arnold, Presiding Judge 

TITLE: 24th Quarterly Judicial Report 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7

Item 2.



2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021

AUGUST SEPT. OCT. NOV. DEC. JAN. FEB. MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY TOTAL

New Cases Filed

Ticket Count 3739 3639 3819 3466 2886 2972 2590 3742 3266 3177 3688 3670 40654

Arraignments

Misdemeanor 180 184 185 159 233 191 167 216 207 207 215 207 2351

Felony 175 202 209 212 206 184 178 273 251 198 260 241 2589

Class C 222 252 444 234 201 327 224 485 464 414 593 560 4420

Counsel Requested

Misdemeanor 0 0 0 0 0 125 116 151 146 140 121 154 953

Felony 0 0 0 0 0 143 115 176 168 138 141 168 1049

Trial by Judge

Actual 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Scheduled 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1

Trial by Jury

Actual 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 3

Scheduled 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 7

Arrest Warrants Issued

Class C 1656 1611 1540 2299 2244 2115 1327 2868 1959 2346 2906 2660 25531

Misdemeanor 29 33 36 21 28 29 30 38 18 25 21 24 332

Felony 73 74 55 46 52 58 50 65 69 53 71 41 707

Search Warrants Issued

Search 22 22 34 24 15 26 18 26 40 30 31 30 318

DWI Blood 26 15 24 23 19 29 20 22 35 34 22 23 292

Code Compliance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 1 1 0 6

Emergency Protective

Orders 17 14 21 21 23 25 30 27 17 22 14 19 250

Magistrate's Order for

Menthal Health Assessment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 4 9 6 0 20

Ignition Interlock 0 0 0 0 5 4 3 5 4 9 1 5 36

Hearings

Animal 0 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

Property 8 0 5 0 4 2 0 0 0 0 1 0 20

Indigent** 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 27               **           27**

No Probable Cause 0 1 0 0 1 0 2 1 2 2 3 1 13

Juvenile

Traffic Cases 17 37 53 48 19 20 19 28 38 44 50 32 405

Penal Cases 15 17 5 11 5 4 7 18 5 15 14 13 129

(Alcohol, Theft, Curfew, etc.)

JUDICIAL ACTIVITY REPORT

August 2020 - July 2021

8

Item 2.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 09/07/2021 

REQUESTER: Fred Bates, Jr. 

PRESENTER: Lily E. Yap, Animal Services Manager 

TITLE: Animal Services Briefing on Adoptions 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Information Only 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9

Item 3.



Page 1 of 5 

 

 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

ORDINANCE 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 09/21/2021 

REQUESTER: Cindy Mendez, Environmental Quality Manager 

PRESENTER: Cindy Mendez, Environmental Quality Manager 

TITLE: Ordinance Amending Chapter 13 “Health and Sanitation,” of the Code 

of Ordinances of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, by amending sections 

of Article XXIII “Stormwater Discharges” relating to “Construction 

Activity Prohibitions and Requirements” and “Releases”  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve  

  

ANALYSIS: 

This ordinance sets forth requirements for discharges to our storm water system and applies to all persons 

who are expected to discharge to our system which is regulated under permit with the Texas Commission 

on Environmental Quality.  Amendments are requested to better regulate construction activities and clarify 

requirements for those submitting applications.  

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

None 

BODY 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 13 “HEALTH AND SANITATION”, OF THE CODE 

OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, BY AMENDING SECTIONS 

OF ARTICLE XXIII “STORMWATER DISCHARGES”, RELATING TO “CONSTRUCTION 

ACTVITY PROHIBITIONS AND REQUIREMENTS” AND “RELEASES”; PROVIDING A 

PENALTY CLAUSE, A SAVINGS CLAUSE AND A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 

PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE UPON PASSAGE AND PUBLICATION. 

WHEREAS, construction activity in the city has seen considerable growth; and 

WHEREAS, ensuring that contractors submit all of the required documentation for review by city staff 

will create more accountability amongst contractors; and 

10

Item 4.



Page 2 of 5 

 

 

WHEREAS, creating reasonable expectations upon a release to the environment will improve our stream 

quality;  

WHEREAS, the City Council is empowered to establish regulations for the protection of public health 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND 

PRAIRIE, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1.  That Section 13-606 of Article XXIII “Stormwater Discharges,” of Chapter 13, “Health 

and Sanitation,” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Grand Prairie, is hereby amended to read as 

follows: 

“13-606. – Construction activity prohibitions and requirements. 

 

(a) No person shall discharge stormwater associated with a construction activity without first having 

obtained a TPDES permit to do so, when applicable.  

(b) No person shall discharge stormwater associated with a construction activity without first having 

submitted a fully executed electronic version of a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWP3) for 

review and acceptance, a copy of the notice of intent (NOI), when applicable, and a construction site 

notice (CSN) to the city.  

(c) All persons must submit a copy of the notice of termination (NOT) to the city at the same time the 

person submits the NOT to the state regulatory agency (TCEQ). This includes Small Construction 

Site Notices (CSNs), as well as Secondary Operator signoffs.  

(d) Any person or operator of construction sites shall use best management practices (BMPs) to control 

and reduce discharge to the city of sediment, silt, earth, soil and other material associated with 

clearing, grading, excavation, filling, hauling and other construction activities to the maximum 

extent practicable. Any person or operator shall install BMPs in compliance with the SWP3 and the 

approved erosion control plan. Any person or operator must maintain BMPs in effective working 

order in compliance with city construction detail standards and BMP standards supported by the 

regional council of governments.  

(e)  Any BMPs capable of installation and/or implementation shall be installed and/or implemented prior 

to the commencement of construction at the site or in compliance with a schedule for installation 

and/or implementation in an applicable stormwater pollution prevention plan (SWP3) and approved 

erosion control plan. Such BMPs must include, but are not limited to, the measures listed in 

subsections (e)(1) through (7), below:  

(1)  Ensure that existing vegetation is preserved where feasible and disturbed areas of the site are 

stabilized as soon as practicable where construction activities have temporary or permanently 

ceased. Stabilization measures may include: Temporary seeding, permanent seeding, mulching, 

geotextiles, sod stabilization, vegetative buffer strips, protection of trees and other appropriate 

measures.  

(2)  Prevention of the discharge of building materials, including cement, lime, concrete and mortar, 

to the MS4 or waters of the United States.  

11

Item 4.



Page 3 of 5 

 

 

(3)  Minimization of the tracking of sediments off-site by vehicles, the generation of dust and the 

escape of other wind-blown waste from the site.  

(4) Providing housekeeping measures to prevent and contain releases of paints, solvents, fuels, 

septic waste and other hazardous chemicals and pollutants associated with construction 

activities, and to assure proper cleanup and disposal of any such releases in compliance with 

state, federal and local requirements.  

(5) Implementation of proper waste disposal and waste management techniques, minimizing   

ground contact with hazardous chemicals and trash.  

(6) Proper placement and maintenance of vegetation, erosion and sediment control measures and 

other best management practices to ensure good and effective working condition.  

(7) Installation of structural BMPs must be completed prior to completion of the construction 

process to control pollutants in stormwater discharges that will occur after construction 

operations have been finalized. Structural measures should be placed on upland soils to the 

degree attainable. Such installed structural measures may include, but are not limited to, the 

following: Stormwater detention structures (including wet ponds), stormwater retention 

structures, flow attenuation by use of open vegetative swales and natural depressions, other 

velocity dissipation devises, infiltration of runoff on-site, and sequential systems which combine 

several practices.  

(f) Qualified personnel (provided by the operator of the construction site) shall inspect all disturbed 

areas of the construction site that have not been finally stabilized, areas used for storage of materials 

and staging of construction that are exposed to precipitation, discharge locations, locations where 

vehicles enter or exit the construction site, and structural controls for evidence of, or potential for, 

pollutants entering the MS4. All erosion and sediment control measures and other identified BMPs 

shall be inspected regularly for proper installation according to the SWP3 and erosion control plan.  

(g) Inspections must be conducted by qualified personnel at least every seven (7) calendar days and 

within twenty-four (24) hours of the end of a storm event of 0.5 inches or greater.  These inspections 

are to be conducted as outlined in the SWP3. Inspection reports must be kept with the SWP3.  

(h) Any owner of a site of construction activity, whether or not he/she is an operator, is jointly and 

severally responsible for compliance with the requirements in this article.  

(i) Any contractor or subcontractor on a site of construction activity, who is not an owner or operator, 

but who is responsible under his/her contract or subcontract for implementing BMP control 

measures, is jointly and severally responsible for any willful or negligent failure on his/her part to 

adequately implement that control measure.  

(j) All persons must comply with the requirements of the TPDES permit or approved erosion control 

plan issued to such person.  

(k) Any person or operator engaging in any land disturbing activity, or any construction activities shall 

prepare an erosion control plan in accordance with the city drainage design manual as currently 

amended and submit that plan to the city for approval. This shall apply regardless of whether a 

person or operator is required to obtain a permit from the city or state regulatory agency in order to 

conduct such land disturbing or construction activity. The person or operator shall also be held 

12

Item 4.



Page 4 of 5 

 

 

liable for violations of this article committed by third parties engaging in activities related to the 

site.  

(l) Any person or operator of sites of construction activity, including clearing, grading, excavation, 

filling and hauling activities, that result in the disturbance of one (1) or more acres of total land area, 

or that are a part of a larger common plan of development or sale, where one (1) or more acres of total 

land area are disturbed, or those who are required to obtain a TPDES permit for stormwater discharges 

associated with construction activities, shall comply with the measures listed in subsections (l)(1) 

through (8), below:  

(1)  Any person or operator who intends to obtain coverage for stormwater discharges for a large 

construction project of five (5) or more acres of land under the TPDES general permit for 

stormwater discharges shall submit a signed copy of the NOI and CSN to the city at least two (2) 

days prior to the commencement of construction activities.  

(2) A site-specific SWP3, prepared by the person or operator with appropriate notices issued as 

required by the state TPDES general permit, shall be kept on the construction site at all times 

during the construction and updated as needed to address changing conditions. The SWP3 shall 

include the city-approved erosion control plan as part thereof.  

(3)  The city may require submission of the SWP3 as currently amended at any time during the course 

of the construction and the person or operator shall submit the SWP3 to the city within twenty-

four (24) hours of the request. The city may notify the person or operator at any time the SWP3 

does not meet the requirements of the construction general permit for stormwater discharge from 

the construction site, or any additional requirements imposed by or under this article, which are 

not being met by the SWP3. The person or operator shall make the required changes to the SWP3 

within seven (7) calendar days of notification and submit to the city that the changes have been 

made and implemented.  

(4)  Operators of a small construction site that are equal to or greater than one (1) acre and less than 

five (5) acres of land must submit a copy of the CSN to the city prior to beginning earth disturbing 

activities.  

(5)  The CSNs and NOI certificate, when applicable shall be posted and readily available for viewing 

by the general public, local, state and federal authorities.  

(6)  Stabilization measures must be initiated as soon as practicable in portions of the construction site 

where land disturbing activities have "temporarily" ceased. Stabilization measures that provide 

protective cover must be initiated as soon as practicable where land disturbing activities have 

"permanently" ceased. These measures must be initiated no more than fourteen (14) days after 

construction activities have temporarily or permanently ceased (as described in the TPDES 

permit).  

(7)  Final stabilization must be achieved and all temporary BMPs removed prior to filing the NOT 

with the state regulatory agency. The city may withhold occupancy or use permit for any premises 

constructed on site until such time the city has determined the site has met the final stabilization 

criteria described in this article.  

13

Item 4.



Page 5 of 5 

 

 

(8)  Upon final stabilization of a large construction project, the person or operator (or duly authorized 

representative thereof) shall submit a NOT to the state regulatory agency and submit a copy of 

the NOT to the city.”  

 

SECTION 2. That Section 13-610 (a) “Releases” of Chapter 13, “Health and Sanitation,” of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

(a)  Notwithstanding other requirements of law, as soon as any person responsible for a facility or 

operation, or responsible for emergency response for a facility or operation has information of any 

known or suspected release of materials which are resulting or may result in illegal discharges or 

pollutants discharging anywhere outside the building and/or into the MS4, said person shall take all 

necessary steps to ensure the discovery, containment and cleanup/remediation of such release 

immediately or within fifteen (15) minutes of the release. The said person shall ensure 

cleanup/remediation of such discharges in accordance with applicable federal, state, and local 

standards. 

 

SECTION 3.  That a violation of any provision of this Ordinance shall be a misdemeanor punishable in 

accordance with Section 1-8 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas. 

 

SECTION 4.  That Chapter 13, “Health and Sanitation”, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Grand 

Prairie, Texas, as amended, shall be and remain in full force and effect save and except as amended by 

this Ordinance. 

 

SECTION 5.  That the terms and provisions of this Ordinance are severable and are governed by Section 

1-4 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas. 

 

SECTION6. All ordinances or parts of ordinances not consistent or conflicting with the provisions of this 

Ordinance are hereby repealed.  Provided that such repeal shall be only to the extent of such inconsistency 

and in all other respects this Ordinance shall be cumulative of other ordinances regulating and governing 

the subject matter covered in this Ordinance. 

 

SECTION 6. That this Ordinance shall be and become effective immediately upon and after its passage 

and publication. 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, 

TEXAS, SEPTEMBER 21, 2021. 

14

Item 4.



Page 1 of 18 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

ORDINANCE 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 09/21/2021 

REQUESTER: Cindy Mendez, Environmental Quality Manager 

PRESENTER: Cindy Mendez, Environmental Quality Manager 

TITLE: Ordinance Amending Chapter 13, “Health and Sanitation” of the Code 

of Ordinances of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, by replacing the 

provisions of Article 10 “Cross Connection Control and Prevention” in 

their entirety with new regulations (PSHE 9/13/21) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve  

  

ANALYSIS: 

This ordinance regulates flow valves in the water distribution system as required by Rules and Regulations 

for Public Water Systems.  This ordinance was last updated in 2010.  Since that time, the City has 

implemented software that allows testers to enter testing results of these flow valves online. In addition, 

updates to definitions, clarification of property owner and tester responsibilities, and standard ordinance 

language has been added.  The entire ordinance is to be replaced.   

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

None 

BODY 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 13, “HEALTH AND SANITATION” OF THE CODE 

OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, BY REPLACING THE 

PROVISIONS OF ARTICLE X, “CROSS-CONNECTION CONTROL AND PREVENTION” IN 

THEIR ENTIRETY WITH NEW REGULATIONS; PROVIDING A PENALTY CLAUSE, A 

SAVINGS CLAUSE AND A SEVERABILITY CLASUE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE UPON PASSAGE AND PUBLICATION. 

WHEREAS, Chapter 290 of Title 30 of the Texas Administrative Code contains regulations designed to 

prevent contamination of the potable water supply through connection to an actual or potential 

contamination hazard; and   

WHEREAS, these regulations have been updated through changes to definitions and other provisions 

applicable to public drinking water system operations; and 

15

Item 5.



Page 2 of 18 

WHEREAS, the City has upgraded its software to allow for on-line usage by certified backflow testers 

and desires to provide for such online usage; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council is empowered to establish regulations for the protection of public health 

and desires to amend its regulations to reflect changes in Chapter 290 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1.  That Article X, “Cross-Connection Control and Prevention,” of Chapter 13, “Health and 

Sanitation,” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Grand Prairie, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

“Article X. CROSS-CONNECTION CONTROL AND PREVENTION 

 

Sec. 13-166. - Purpose. 

Every source of contamination or possible contamination from any contaminant which originates from or 

is located at a residential or commercial establishment, which is connected to any public water supply, or 

which provides water to the public shall be equipped with the protection required under the provisions of 

this article.  

Sec. 13-167. - Definitions. 

For the purpose of this article, the following definitions shall apply unless the context clearly indicates or 

requires a different meaning. If a word or term used in this article is not contained in the following list, its 

definition, or other technical terms used, shall have the meanings or definitions listed in the most recent 

edition of the Manual of Cross Connection Control published by the Foundation for Cross Connection 

Control and Hydraulic Research, University of Southern California. The following definitions shall apply 

to this article:  

Air gap shall mean the unobstructed vertical distance through the free atmosphere between the lowest 

opening from any pipe or faucet conveying water to a tank, fixture, receptor, sink, or other assembly and 

the flood level rim of the receptacle. The vertical, physical separation must be at least twice the diameter 

of the water supply outlet, but never less than 1.0 inch.  

Approved backflow prevention assembly or backflow assembly or assembly shall mean an assembly 

to counteract backpressure and/or prevent backsiphonage that meets the standards contained in the current 

Plumbing Code adopted by the city. 

Backflow shall mean the flow in the direction opposite to the normal flow or the introduction of any 

foreign liquids, gases, or substances into the water system of the city's water.  

Backpressure shall mean any elevation of pressure in the downstream piping system (by any means) 

above the supply pressure at the point of consideration which would cause, or tend to cause, a reversal of 

the normal direction of flow and the introduction of fluids, mixtures, or substances from any source other 

than the intended source.  

Backsiphonage shall mean the flow of water or other liquids, mixtures, or substances into the 

distribution pipes of a potable water supply system from any source other than its intended source caused 

by a sudden reduction of pressure in the potable water supply system.  

16

Item 5.



Page 3 of 18 

Commercial establishment or commercial customer shall mean any property other than the single-

family residential group.  

Contaminants shall mean any foreign material, solid or liquid, not common to the potable water 

supply which makes or may make the water unfit or undesirable for human or animal consumption.  

Contamination shall mean the presence of any foreign substance (organic, inorganic, radiological or 

biological) in water which tends to degrade its quality so as to constitute a health hazard or impair the 

usefulness of the water.  

Cross-connection shall mean any actual or potential connection or structural arrangement between a 

public or consumer's potable water system and any other source or system through which it is possible to 

introduce into any part of the potable system any used water, industrial fluid, gas, or substance other than 

the intended potable water with which the system is supplied. Bypass arrangements, jumper connections, 

removable sections, swivel or change-over devices and other temporary or permanent devices through 

which or because of which backflow can occur are considered to be cross-connections.   

Cross-connection control assembly shall mean any assembly placed upon any connection, physical 

or otherwise, between a potable water supply system and any plumbing fixture, or any tank, receptacle, 

equipment or device, which is designed to prevent non-potable, used, unclean, polluted, and contaminated 

water, or other substances, from entering into any part of such potable water system under any condition 

or set of conditions.  

Degree of hazard shall mean the low or high hazard classification that shall be attached to all actual 

or potential cross-connections.  

(1) Health hazard or high hazard shall mean a cross-connection, potential contamination hazard, 

or other situation involving any substance that can cause death, illness, spread of disease, or 

has a high probability of causing such effects if introduced into the potable drinking water 

supply. 

(2) Low hazard or nonhealth hazard shall mean a cross-connection, potential contamination 

hazard, or other situation involving any substance that generally will not be a health hazard, 

but will constitute a nuisance, or be aesthetically objectionable, if introduced into the public 

water supply. 

Director.  The director or manager of the departments or divisions designated by the City Manager 

to enforce and administer this Article, including the Environmental Services Manager, or his designee.  

Double check detector backflow prevention assembly or double check detector assembly or DCDA 

shall mean an assembly composed of a line-size approved double check assembly with a bypass containing 

a specific water meter and an approved double check valve assembly. The meter shall register accurately 

for very low rates of flow.  

Double check valve backflow prevention assembly or double check valve assembly or double check 

or DC or DCVA shall mean an assembly consisting of two internally loaded, independently operating 

check valves, located between two tightly closing resilient seated shutoff valves with four properly placed 

resilient seated test cocks.  

17

Item 5.



Page 4 of 18 

Fireline backflow tester shall mean a tester who is permanently employed by a state-approved fireline 

contractor and is qualified to test backflow prevention assemblies on firelines.  

General tester shall mean a tester who is qualified to test backflow prevention assemblies on any 

domestic, commercial, industrial, or irrigation service, except firelines. 

Local Regulatory Authority shall mean any municipal officer or department of the city appointed by 

the city manager to administer this article. 

Mobile unit shall mean any operation which may have the potential to introduce contaminants into a 

potable water system from a mobile source. These include, but are not limited to, carpet-cleaning vehicles, 

water-hauling vehicles, street-cleaning vehicles, liquid-waste vehicles, power-wash operations, and pest-

control vehicles.  

Person shall mean any individual, partnership, association, corporation, firm, club, trustee, receiver, 

and bodies politic and corporate.  

Point-of-use isolation shall mean the appropriate backflow prevention within the consumer's water 

system at the point at which the actual or potential cross-connection exists.  

Potable water supply shall mean any water supply intended or used for human consumption or other 

domestic use.  

Premises shall mean any piece of property to which water is provided, including all improvements, 

mobile structures, and structures located on it.  

Premises isolation shall mean the appropriate backflow prevention at the service connection between 

the public water system and the water user.  

Pressure vacuum breaker backflow prevention assembly or pressure vacuum breaker or PVB shall 

mean an assembly which provides protection against backsiphonage, but does not provide adequate 

protection against backpressure backflow. The assembly consists of an independently operating, internally 

loaded check valve, an independently operating, loaded air-inlet valve located on the discharge side of the 

check valve, with properly located resilient seated test cocks and tightly closing resilient seated shutoff 

valves at each end of the assembly.  

Public water system or system or PWS shall mean any public or privately owned water system which 

supplies water for public domestic use. The system will include all services, reservoirs, facilities, and any 

equipment use in the process of producing, treating, storing, or conveying water for public consumption.  

Reduced pressure principle backflow prevention assembly or reduced pressure principle assembly or 

RP assembly or RP shall mean an assembly consisting of a mechanical, independently acting, 

hydraulically dependent relief valve, located between two independently operating, internally loaded 

check valves that are located between two tightly closing resilient-seated shutoff valves with four properly 

placed resilient-seated test cocks.  

Reduced pressure principle detector backflow prevention assembly or reduced pressure detector or 

RPDA shall mean an assembly composed of a line-size approved reduced pressure principle assembly 

with a bypass containing a specific water meter and an approved reduced pressure principle backflow 

prevention assembly. The meter shall register accurately for very low rates of flow.  

18

Item 5.



Page 5 of 18 

Representative of the water system shall mean a person designated by the city to perform cross-

connection control duties that shall include, but are not limited to, cross-connection inspections and water 

use surveys.  

Residential use shall mean water used by any residential customer of the water supply and include 

single-family dwellings, duplexes, multiplexes, housing and apartments where the individual units are 

each on a separate meter or, in cases where two (2) or more units are served by one (1) meter, the units 

are full-time dwellings.  

Service connection shall mean the point of delivery at which the water purveyor loses control of the 

water.  

Spill-resistant pressure vacuum breaker or SVB shall mean an assembly containing an independently 

operating, internally loaded check valve and independently operating, loaded air inlet valve located on the 

discharge side of the check valve. This assembly is to be equipped with a properly located resilient seated 

test cock and tightly closing resilient seated shutoff valves attached at each end of the assembly.  

State environmental regulatory authority shall mean the state’s agencies that have the authority to 

adopt and enforce any environmental rules necessary to carry out its powers and duties under the laws of 

Texas. 

Tester shall mean a person that is a certified backflow prevention assembly technician approved by 

and registered with the city and the state environmental regulatory authority.  

Thermal expansion shall mean heated water that does not have the space to expand.  

Used water shall mean water supplied by a public water system to a water user's system after it has 

passed through the service connection.  

290 Rules shall mean the rules and regulations for public water systems, which appear in Title 30, 

Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 290 

Sec. 13-168. - Customer service inspection.  

(a)  A customer service inspection for cross-connection control shall be completed by the local 

regulatory authority prior to providing continuous water service in each of the following 

circumstances:  

(1)  When water service is established for a newly constructed facility or previously non-existing 

premises.  

(2) After any improvement to buildings or premises which has an impact on existing water service 

(3) When there is any correction or addition to the plumbing of any facility or premises served 

by the city.  

(4)  Whenever the local regulatory authority deems it reasonably necessary.  

(b) Permanent water service shall not be supplied to any new construction facility until after the 

customer service inspection is completed.  

19

Item 5.



Page 6 of 18 

Sec. 13-169. - Protection required. 

(a) No water-service connection shall be made to any establishment where a potential or actual 

contamination hazard exists unless the water supply is protected in accordance with the 290 Rules 

and this ordinance. The local regulatory authority shall discontinue water service if a required air 

gap or backflow prevention assembly is not installed, maintained, and tested in accordance with 

the 290 Rules and this ordinance. 

(b) The backflow prevention assembly protection which is required under this article shall be from an 

approved list by the University of Southern California Foundation for Cross-Connection Control 

and Hydraulic Research, or as determined by the local regulatory authority. Each backflow 

prevention assembly must have been approved by the local regulatory authority or his chosen 

representative in conjunction with the chief plumbing inspector of the city for the use contemplated 

by the commercial establishment prior to installation. Failure to obtain such approval prior to 

installation of the backflow prevention assembly may result in the backflow prevention assembly 

failing to meet final approval by the local regulatory authority. The local regulatory authority shall 

determine the type and location of backflow assembly to be installed within the area served by the 

city. The assembly will be required in each of the following circumstances, but the representative 

is in no way limited to the following circumstances:  

(1) The nature and extent of any activity of the premises, or the materials used in connection with 

any activity of the premises, or materials stored on the premises could contaminate or pollute 

the potable water supply.  

(2) Premises having any one (1) or more potential or existing cross-connections that are identified 

or are present.  

(3) Internal cross-connections are present that are not correctable.  

(4) Intricate plumbing arrangements are present which make it impractical to ascertain whether 

cross-connections exist.  

(5) There is a repeated history of cross-connections being established or reestablished.  

(6) There is unduly restricted entry so that inspections for cross-connections cannot be made with 

sufficient frequency to assure that cross-connections do not exist.  

(7) Materials are being used such that if backflow should occur a health hazard could result from 

contaminants. 

(8) Installation of an approved backflow prevention assembly is deemed to be necessary to 

accomplish the purpose of these regulations in the judgement of the city.  

(9) An appropriate cross-connection survey or customer service inspection report form has not 

been filed with the Environmental Quality Division of the city upon request of the city.  

(10) A fire sprinkler system is connected to the city's water system. 

20

Item 5.



Page 7 of 18 

(11) All new construction, if deemed necessary in the customer service inspection. The type of 

assembly will be commensurate with the degree of hazard as determined by the local 

regulatory authority.  

(12) When a building is constructed on commercial premises, and the end use of such building is 

not determined or could change, a reduced pressure principle backflow prevention assembly 

may be installed at the service connection that supplies water for public domestic use.  

(13) Any used water return system.  

(14) In the event a point-of-use assembly has not had the testing or repair done as required by this 

article, a premises isolation assembly will be required.  

(15) If it is determined that additions or alterations have been made to the plumbing system without 

obtaining proper permits, premises isolation may be required.  

(16) All multistory buildings or any building with a booster pump or elevated storage tank.  

(17) Retrofitting will be required on all high hazard connections and wherever else the local 

regulatory authority deems necessary to retrofit.  

(c) No backflow prevention assembly may be removed from use or relocated, nor may one assembly 

be substituted for another, , without prior approval of the local regulatory authority. 

(d) All backflow prevention assemblies shall be installed in a manner for easy access. If an assembly 

must be installed higher than five (5) feet above grade, a permanent platform shall be installed 

around the assembly. Any currently installed backflow prevention assemblies which, in the 

opinion of the local regulatory authority, are located in inaccessible locations, or where the tester 

is subject to physical danger, shall be relocated to an approved location.  

(e) Any premises requiring multiple service connections for adequacy of supply and/or fire protection 

will be required to install a backflow assembly on each service connection. The type of assembly 

will be determined by the degree of potential hazard as determined by the local regulatory authority 

in order to protect the public water system from contamination or pollution. 

(f) No person shall install or maintain a backflow prevention assembly upon or within any city right-

of-way except as provided in this section.  

(1) A backflow prevention assembly required by the city may be installed upon or within any city 

right-of-way only if the owner proves to the city that there is no other feasible location for 

installing the assembly and installing it in the right-of-way will not interfere with traffic or 

utilities. The city retains the right to approve or deny the location, height, depth, enclosure, and 

other requisites of the assembly prior to its installation.  

(2) All permits and inspections required by the City Code to perform work in the right-of-way 

shall be obtained.  

(3) The assembly shall be installed below or flush with the surrounding grade except when it is 

not practicable to install it in this manner. Any assembly or portion of an assembly which 

21

Item 5.



Page 8 of 18 

extends above ground shall be located no closer than eighteen (18) inches to the face of the 

curb.  

(4) The city shall not be liable for any damage done to or caused by an assembly installed in a 

right-of-way.  

(5) A property owner shall, at the request of the city and at the owner's sole expense, relocate a 

backflow prevention assembly which encroaches upon any city right-of-way when such 

relocation is necessary for the city’s reconstruction, widening, or straightening of streets; 

placement or installation of traffic signals, traffic signs and streetlights; or utility construction 

or repairs for purposes of public safety or other city public improvement projects.  

(6) A person commits an offense if he/she fails to relocate a backflow prevention assembly located 

in or upon any city right-of-way after receiving a written order from the local regulatory 

authority to do so.  

(g) It is the responsibility of any person who owns or controls property to eliminate the possibility of 

thermal expansion if a closed system has been created by the installation of a backflow assembly.  

(h) Any reduction in water pressure caused by the installation of a backflow assembly is not the 

responsibility of the city.  

(i) Any person who owns or controls property or establishes water service is responsible for the 

installation, testing and repair of all backflow assemblies on their property.  

(j) Air gap separations provide maximum protection from backflow hazards and may be utilized at 

premises where a substance is handled that would be hazardous to health if introduced into the 

potable water system. 

(k) A proper air gap is required to fill an external tank. 

(l) An approved double check detector backflow prevention assembly (DCDA) or reduced pressure 

detector assemblies (RPDAs) shall be the minimum protection for fire sprinkler systems. An 

RPDA must be installed if any solution other than the potable water can be introduced into the 

sprinkler system.  

(m) A permit shall be obtained from the Building Inspection Division for all commercial and 

residential lawn irrigation system installations prior to any such installations. The installation 

requirements must comply with guidelines for the appropriate assembly found in this article. 

Interconnections of the potable water supply with an alternate water source is prohibited. 

Approved backflow protection assemblies must be installed if any mechanical injection stations 

are used with the irrigation system.  

(n) The connection of a mobile unit to any potable water system is prohibited unless such connection 

is protected by an air gap or an approved backflow prevention assembly. Prior approval and annual 

testing of any backflow prevention assembly must be received from the local regulatory authority 

before connecting to any potable water system.   

(o) The connection of an auxiliary supply is prohibited. An auxiliary supply shall mean any water 

source or system other than the public water system that may be available in the building or on the 

22

Item 5.



Page 9 of 18 

property. These auxiliary sources of water may include but are not limited to other public water 

system sources or other unapproved onsite source(s) which are not under the control of a public 

water system, such as a groundwater well, lake, spring, river, stream, harbor, and so forth. 

Auxiliary water sources may also include graywater, rain or storm water, reclaimed waters, or 

recycled waters. 

Sec. 13-170. - Installation requirements for backflow prevention assemblies.  

(a) General. To ensure proper operation and accessibility of all backflow prevention assemblies, the 

following requirements shall apply to the installation of these assemblies:  

(1) Backflow prevention assemblies shall be installed in accordance with the current state 

environmental regulatory authority’s rules and these regulations. The assembly installer must 

obtain the required plumbing permits, have the assembly tested according to sec. 13-172 of 

this article, and have the installation inspected by a representative of the chief plumbing 

inspector.  

(2) At those facilities where the local regulatory authority requires a backflow prevention 

assembly to be installed at the point of delivery of the water supply, such installation of the 

assembly must be located on private property inside the boundary between the city right-of-

way and the landowner’s property and located in front of any branch in the line. 

(3) Any backflow prevention assembly required for premise isolation or firelines for an 

establishment shall be installed within 100 feet of the connection to the public water supply.  

(4) The assembly must be protected from freezing and other severe weather conditions with a city 

approved enclosure.  

(5) Lines must be thoroughly flushed prior to installation. A strainer with blowout tapping may 

be required ahead of the assembly.  

(6) All backflow prevention assemblies shall be of a type and model approved by the local 

regulatory authority.  

(7) All vertical installations of backflow assemblies must have prior approval by the local 

regulatory authority. Specific make, model, and size for installation must be submitted for 

approval. 

(8) Assemblies installed more than five (5) feet above floor level must have a permanent platform 

for use by testing or maintenance personnel.  

(9) Bypass lines are prohibited. Pipe fittings which could be used for connecting a bypass line 

must not be installed.  

(10) All facilities that require continuous, uninterrupted water service and are required to have a 

backflow assembly must make provision for the parallel installation of assemblies of the same 

type so that testing, repair, and maintenance can be performed.  

23

Item 5.



Page 10 of 18 

(11) The property owner assumes all responsibility for any damages resulting from installation, 

operation, and/or maintenance of a backflow assembly. The owner shall be responsible for 

keeping all backflow prevention assembly vaults reasonably free of silt and debris.  

(12) Upon completion of installation, the local regulatory authority shall be notified, and all 

assemblies must be inspected and tested in accordance with this article. All assemblies must 

be registered with the local regulatory authority.  Information required for registration shall 

include, but not be limited to, the date of installation, manufacturer, model, type, size, serial 

number of the backflow assembly, and initial test report.  

(b) Reduced pressure principle backflow prevention assemblies (RPs). In the absence of an air gap, 

RPs  must be utilized at premises where a substance is handled that would be hazardous to health 

if introduced into the potable water system. The RP is normally used in locations where an air gap 

is impractical.  

(1) In accordance with the manufacturer’s specifications, RPs must be sized to provide an 

adequate supply of water and pressure for the premises being served. 

(2) The assembly must be readily accessible for testing and maintenance and must be located in 

an area where water damage to building or furnishing would not occur from relief valve 

discharge. The property owner assumes all responsibility for any damage caused by water 

discharge from an RP assembly. An approved air gap shall be located at the relief valve orifice 

of RP assemblies. An approved air gap funnel assembly may be used to direct minor 

discharges away from the assembly This assembly will not control flow in a continuous relief 

situation. The presence of drain lines to accommodate full relief valve discharge flow is 

required.  

(3) No part of a reduced pressure principle backflow prevention assembly shall be submerged in 

water or installed in a location subject to flooding.  

(4) Enclosures shall be designed for ready access and sized to allow for the minimum clearances 

established below.  

(5) Assemblies two (2) inches and smaller shall have at least six (6) inches clearance on both 

sides and on top of the assembly, and twelve (12) inches below and behind the assembly. All 

assemblies larger than two (2) inches shall have a minimum of twelve (12) inches on the back 

side, twenty-four (24) inches on the test cock side, and the relief valve opening shall be at 

least twelve (12) inches above the floor or highest possible water level.  

(6)  Any deviations from these requirements must have prior written approval of the local 

regulatory authority.  

(c) Reduced pressure principle detector backflow prevention assemblies (RPDAs). RPDAs may be 

utilized in all installations requiring a reduced pressure principle backflow prevention assembly 

and detector metering.  

(1) RPDAs shall comply with the installation requirements for reduced pressure principle 

backflow assemblies (RPs).  

24

Item 5.



Page 11 of 18 

(2) The line-size RP assembly and the bypass RP assembly must each be tested. A separate test 

report for each assembly must be completed by the certified tester.  

(d) Double check valve backflow prevention assemblies (DCs). DCs may be utilized at premises 

where a substance is handled that would be objectionable but not hazardous to health if introduced 

into the potable water system.  

(1) In accordance with the manufacturer’s specifications, DCs must be sized to provide an 

adequate supply of water and pressure for the premises being served. 

(2) The assembly shall be readily accessible with adequate room for testing and maintenance. 

DCs may be installed below grade, providing all test cocks are fitted with brass pipe plugs. 

All vaults shall be well-drained, constructed of suitable materials, and sized to allow for the 

minimum clearances established below.  

(3) Assemblies two (2) inches and smaller shall have at least six (6) inches' clearance below and 

on both sides of the assembly and, if located in a vault, the bottom of the assembly shall be 

not more than twenty-four (24) inches below grade. All assemblies larger than two (2) inches 

shall have a minimum clearance of twelve (12) inches on the back side, twenty-four (24) 

inches on the test cock side, and twelve (12) inches below the assembly. Headroom of six (6) 

feet zero (0) inches is required in vaults without a fully removable top. A minimum access 

opening of thirty-six (36) inches is required on all vault lids. These clearance standards apply 

to all assemblies installed in vaults, enclosures, and meter boxes.  

(4) Any deviations from these requirements must have prior written approval of the local 

regulatory authority.  

(e) Double check detector backflow prevention assemblies (DCDAs) may be utilized in all 

installations requiring a double check valve assembly and detector metering.  

(1) DCDAs shall comply with the installation requirements for double check valve assemblies 

(DCs).  

(2) The line-size DC assembly and the bypass DC assembly must each be tested. A separate test 

report for each assembly must be completed by the certified tester.  

(f) Pressure vacuum breaker backflow prevention assemblies (PVBs). PVBs may be utilized at point-

of-use protection only and where a substance is handled that would be objectionable but not 

hazardous to health if introduced into the potable water system. PVBs protect against back-

siphonage only, and they shall not be installed where there is potential for backpressure.  

(1) The assembly shall be installed a minimum of twelve (12) inches above the highest 

downstream piping.  

(2) PVBs shall not be installed in an area subject to flooding or where damage would occur from 

water discharge.  

(3) The assembly shall be readily accessible for testing and maintenance, with a minimum 

clearance of twelve (12) inches all around the assembly.  

25

Item 5.



Page 12 of 18 

(4) Any deviations from these requirements must have prior written approval of the regulatory 

authority.  

(g) Spill-resistant pressure vacuum breaker backflow prevention assemblies (SVBs). SVBs may be 

utilized in all installations requiring a pressure vacuum breaker. SVBs shall comply with the 

installation requirements for pressure vacuum breaker backflow prevention assemblies.  

Sec. 13-171. - Residential service connections.  

Any person who owns or controls any residential property which has been determined to have an actual 

or potential cross-connection will be required to eliminate the actual or potential cross-connection or have 

an approved backflow assembly installed in accordance with this article to be maintained at the owner’s 

expense.  

Sec. 13-172. - Testing of assemblies.  

(a) The local regulatory authority shall inspect and test, or cause to be inspected and tested, all 

assemblies in each of the following circumstances:  

(1) Immediately after installations;  

(2) Whenever the assembly is relocated;  

(3) A minimum of once a year in the month designated by the local regulatory authority; 

(4) On premises that have been vacated and unoccupied for one (1) year, prior to reoccupancy;  

(5) Immediately after repairs; and  

(6) For quality assurance after testing. 

(b) Testing of assemblies for non-health hazards at residential service connections is required upon 

installation and at a frequency determined by the local regulatory authority. 

(c) All assembly testing shall be performed by a certified backflow prevention assembly tester, 

approved by and registered with the local regulatory authority.  

(d) The city shall not be liable for damage to a backflow prevention assembly that occurs during 

testing.  

(e) The local regulatory authority may cause a water use survey or customer service inspection to be 

conducted at any commercial establishment located in the city which is served by a public water 

supply or which provides water to the public. Upon determination by the local regulatory authority 

that a commercial establishment falls under, and has failed to comply with, the provisions of this 

article, the local regulatory authority shall issue a notice to abate the condition or order the 

commercial establishment to install the proper backflow prevention assembly.  

(f) It is the responsibility of any person who owns or controls property to have all assemblies tested 

in the month established by the local regulatory authority and in accordance with this article. 

Assemblies may be required to be tested more frequently if the local regulatory authority deems 

necessary.  

26

Item 5.



Page 13 of 18 

(g) Assemblies must be repaired, overhauled, or replaced whenever the assemblies are found to be 

defective. 

 

(h) Backflow prevention assemblies installed on fire suppression systems must be tested by a 

backflow prevention assembly tester permanently employed by an approved fireline contractor. 

(i) All results from a newly installed fire line assembly by a fireline tester shall be placed on a form 

approved by the local regulatory authority.  

(j) All results from annual assembly testing shall be submitted on-line through the city’s approved 

website or on a form approved by the local regulatory authority. 

(k) All newly installed, non-fireline assemblies or assemblies that do not require confined space entry 

shall have the initial test performed by the local regulatory authority. 

 Sec. 13-173. - Responsibilities.  

(a) Property owner. It is the responsibility of all property owners and persons in charge of any 

premises to abide by the conditions of this article. In the event of any changes to the plumbing 

system, it is the responsibility of the property owners, persons in charge of any premises, and 

persons who establish water service to receive prior approval for the changes from the local 

regulatory authority. It shall also be the responsibility of the property owners, persons in charge 

of any premises, and persons who establish water service to comply with the following:  

(1) Payment of all costs associated with this article and the purchase, installation, testing and 

repair of backflow prevention assemblies.  

(2) Install and maintain all backflow prevention assemblies in accordance with this article and 

acceptable industry practice.  

(3) All commercial establishments shall cause to have all backflow prevention assemblies on their 

premises tested annually during the month assigned by the local regulatory authority. Such 

testing must be conducted by a certified cross-connection tester who is registered with the 

city.  

(4) Maintain all backflow prevention assemblies in proper working order at all times, including 

repair or replacement as required.  

(5) Repairs or replacements shall be completed by the date established by the local regulatory 

authority. 

(6) Maintain all backflow prevention assemblies in a manner which allows them to be tested by 

a method that has been approved by the regulatory authority.  

(7) All records related to backflow prevention assembly installation, testing and repair shall be 

maintained on the premises for a minimum of three (3) years.  

(8) Requests for removal or relocation must be submitted to the local regulatory authority in 

writing. No backflow prevention assembly may be removed from use or relocated, nor may 

27

Item 5.



Page 14 of 18 

one assembly be substituted for another, without prior approval of the local regulatory 

authority. 

(b) Certified backflow prevention assembly tester. A certified backflow prevention assembly tester 

shall comply with the following requirements:  

(1) Annually register with the local regulatory authority and pay the annual, nonrefundable 

required tester registration fee established by this article.  

(2) Maintain testing equipment in proper working condition/calibration and provide proof that 

testing equipment is able to maintain a calibration of plus or minus 0.2 psid accuracy.  

(3) Maintain the design or operation characteristics of an assembly.  

(4) Test assemblies in a manner according to the most recent edition of the Manual of Cross 

Connection Control published by the Foundation for Cross Connection Control and Hydraulic 

Research, University of Southern California, the state environmental regulatory authority, and 

local regulatory authority’s regulations.  

(5) Report testing data, including accurate assembly information, test gauge serial numbers, 

repairs, and verify that assembly is installed   as required by this article and the manufacturer, 

on-line through the city’s approved website or on a form approved by the local regulatory 

authority.  

(6) Submit test results to the local regulatory authority within seven (7) days of testing.  

(7) Provide a copy of the completed test report to the property owners and/or persons in charge 

of any premises immediately after testing.  

(8) Maintain testing and/or repair records for a minimum of three (3) years.  

(c) After not less than ten (10) days’ written notice to a backflow prevention assembly tester  who is 

registered with the city (“the registrant”), the director may revoke said registration if the registrant 

fails to meet the requirements of this article.  Such written notice shall  include the reason for 

the revocation, the effective date, and instructions on how to appeal the revocation.  The registrant 

shall have ten (10) days after receipt of the written notice from the director to submit a written 

request to the city manager appealing the revocation.    

(d) Local regulatory authority. The local regulatory authority shall have the authority and 

responsibility to enforce the provisions of this article and the state statutes, when applicable, 

regarding cross-connections. At the expense of the property owner, the local regulatory authority 

shall inspect and initially test, or cause to be tested, all backflow prevention assemblies installed 

pursuant to the requirements of this article. For new facilities, permanent water service shall not 

be provided until all backflow prevention assemblies have been tested and are operational. Except 

in cases where the testing of backflow prevention assemblies must be delayed until the installation 

of internal production or auxiliary equipment, the local regulatory authority shall not approve a 

certificate of occupancy until all backflow prevention assemblies have been tested and are 

operational. The city shall not be liable for damage caused to any backflow prevention assembly 

as a result of the inspection or testing.  

28

Item 5.



Page 15 of 18 

Sec. 13-174. - Same—Fees.  

(a) There shall be an annual nonrefundable registration fee for each backflow prevention assembly. 

The registration fee to be charged for a backflow prevention assembly shall be thirty-five dollars 

($35.00) per each separate assembly. This fee may appear on the monthly water/sewer bills and 

relates solely to the matters covered in this article and are separate from other fees chargeable by 

the city.  

(b) There shall be a testing fee of one hundred dollars ($100.00) per each separate backflow prevention 

assembly for which the local regulatory authority performs a test. This fee applies to, but is not 

limited to, all newly installed backflow assemblies. If, upon inspection or testing of a backflow 

prevention assembly, it is deemed to not be working properly, it is the responsibility of the property 

owners and persons in charge of any premises to make necessary repairs. A retest fee of fifty 

dollars ($50.00) will be assessed for each retest performed by the regulatory authority. Testing 

fees may appear on the monthly water/sewer bill and are separate from other fees chargeable by 

the city.  

(c) There shall be an annual, nonrefundable registration fee of one hundred dollars ($100.00) for each 

certified backflow prevention assembly tester prior to testing any backflow assemblies in the city.  

 

(d) There shall be fees established for online entry test forms and for test forms purchased from the 

City. These fees shall be paid by the tester   for submitting each test report and for obtaining an 

approved report form. The fees are subject to change.  Current fees shall be posted on the City 

website.  

Sec. 13-175. - Penalty for violations; other remedies.  

(a) Any person, agent, property owner, business owner, Operator, manager, sublessor, firm, or 

corporation who violates any provision of this Article or any permit issued under this Article, 

including failing to perform a required act or performing a prohibited act, is guilty of a 

misdemeanor and upon conviction is punishable by a fine as provided in section 1-8 of the Code 

of Ordinances of the City of Grand Prairie, or any amendment thereto or renumbering thereof, for 

violations of public health for each act of violation and for each day of violation.  Each day may 

be considered a new violation. 

(b) Any person, firm, or corporation who obstructs, impedes, or interferes with a lawfully placed and 

operated surveillance equipment or the lawful actions of representative of the City, a representative 

of a City department, or a person who is abating  situation pursuant to this Article is guilty of a 

misdemeanor and upon conviction is punishable by a fine as provided in section 1-8 of the Code 

of Ordinances of the City of Grand Prairie, or any amendment thereto or renumbering thereof, for 

violations of public health for each act of violation and for each day of violation.  It is a rebuttable 

presumption that the placement and operation of surveillance equipment and the actions of City 

employees and vendors are lawful  

(c) In addition to proceeding under authority of subsections (a) and (b) of this section, the City is 

entitled to pursue all criminal and civil remedies to which it is entitled under authority of statutes 

or other ordinances against a person, agent, property owner, business owner, operator, manager, 

sublessor, firm, or corporation that remains in violation of this Article. 

29

Item 5.



Page 16 of 18 

(d) Failure to annually test. If the responsible party fails to have annual testing performed, or fails to 

submit proof of testing, as required by this ordinance, the city may test or contract with a tester to 

perform testing requirements and charge the customer for said expense(s) included with the 

monthly water bill. Nonpayment of this special billing shall be grounds for termination of service 

in accordance with this Code.  

(e) Water service. The city may refuse or discontinue water service if a backflow prevention assembly 

is not installed, certified for operation, repaired or replaced as required by this article.  

(f) Sanctions for failure to pay bill. In addition to sanctions provided for by this article, the city is 

entitled to exercise sanctions provided for by other ordinances of the city for failure to pay the bill 

for water and sanitary sewer services when due.  

(g) Revocation of certified tester's registration. A certified tester's registration may be reviewed and 

revoked by the city if the local regulatory authority determines that the tester has failed to meet 

any and all responsibilities of a certified backflow assembly tester as required by 173(b) of this 

section. The director shall provide the tester written notice of the revocation and the grounds for 

the same. The tester has the right to appeal the revocation by submitting a written appeal to the 

director within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the notice. The appeal hearing shall be held as 

soon as practical and no later than fourteen (14) calendar days after the request is received. The 

appeal shall be heard by the designated hearing authority. The hearing authority shall issue a 

written ruling with findings of fact within five (5) business days of the hearing date. The decision 

of the hearing authority shall be final. 

(h) This section is in addition to any other civil, criminal, administrative or regulatory rights and remedies 

the City may have and is not intended to limit the City’s rights, authority, or defenses in any way. 

Sec. 13-176 – Right of Entry. 

The city's representative(s) shall have the right to enter the premises of any person to determine whether 

that person is compliance with all requirements of this article. Persons shall allow inspecting or monitoring 

personnel ready access to all parts of the premises for the purposes of inspection, quality assurance, records 

examination and copying, and the performance of any additional duties. Any information concerning a 

requirement under this article shall be made readily available upon request. Any information concerning 

a requirement under this Article, including, but not limited to water testing data, construction records, 

state registrations, environmental and closure records, shall be made readily available upon request. When 

required by law, a search or inspection warrant must be obtained prior to a search being conducted. 

(a)   Where security measures are in force which requires proper identification and clearance before 

entry into the premises, that person shall make necessary arrangements with its security guards so 

that, upon presentation of suitable identification, the city's representative will be permitted to enter 

without delay for the purposes of performing specific responsibilities.  

(b)  The city's representatives shall have the right to set up on any person's property such devices as 

are necessary to conduct monitoring of any person's operations.  

(c)  Unreasonable delays in allowing inspecting or monitoring personnel access to any person's 

premises shall be a violation of this article.  

30

Item 5.



Page 17 of 18 

Sec. 13-177. - Right of revision. 

The local regulatory authority reserves the right to establish, by ordinance more stringent standards or 

requirements to the 290 rules.  

Sec. 13-178. - Search warrants. 

If the local regulatory authority has been refused access to a building, structure, or property, or any part 

thereof, and is able to demonstrate probable cause to believe that there may be a violation of this article, 

or that there is a need to inspect and/or sample as part of a routine inspection and sampling program of the 

city designed to verify compliance with this article or any permit or order issued hereunder, or to protect 

the overall public health, safety and welfare of the community, then the regulatory authority may seek 

issuance of a search warrant from the appropriate court.  

Sec. 13-179. - Remedies nonexclusive. 

The remedies provided for in this article are not exclusive. The local regulatory authority may take any, all, 

or any combination of these actions against a noncompliant user.  

Sec. 13-180. - Administrative liability. 

 (a)  No officer, agent, or employee of the city shall be personally liable for any damage that 

may accrue to persons or property as a result of any act required or permitted in the discharge of such 

person's duties under this article.  

(b)  Any suit brought against any officer, agent, or employee of the city as a result of any act required 

or permitted in this discharge of such duties under this article shall be defended by the city attorney 

until the final determination of the proceedings therein. 

Secs. 13-181—13-185. - Reserved.”  

SECTION 2. That a violation of any provision of this Ordinance shall be a misdemeanor punishable in 

accordance with Section 1-8 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas. 

 

SECTION 3. That Chapter 13, “Health and Sanitation”, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Grand 

Prairie, Texas, as amended, shall be and remain in full force and effect save and except as amended by 

this Ordinance. 

 

SECTION 4. That the terms and provisions of this Ordinance are severable and are governed by Section 

1-4 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas. 

 

SECTION 5. All ordinances or parts of ordinances not consistent or conflicting with the provisions of 

this Ordinance are hereby repealed.  Provided that such repeal shall be only to the extent of such 

inconsistency and in all other respects this Ordinance shall be cumulative of other ordinances regulating 

and governing the subject matter covered in this Ordinance. 

 

SECTION 6. That this Ordinance shall be and become effective immediately upon and after its passage 

and publication. 

 

31

Item 5.



Page 18 of 18 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, 

TEXAS, SEPTEMBER 21, 2021. 

32

Item 5.


	Top
	Item 1.	Minutes of the August 2, 2021 Public Safety, Health and Environment Meeting
	9-13-21 PSHE Communication Form
	Minutes of the August 2, 2021 Public Safety, Health and Environment Committee Meeting

	Item 2.	24th Quarterly Judicial Report
	24th Quarterly Judicial Report
	24TH PSH&E QUARTERLY REPORT

	Item 3.	PSHE: Animal Services Briefing on Adoptions
	Presentation - Animal Services Briefing

	Item 4.	ORD:  Stormwater Discharges Ordinance (PHSE 9/13/2021).
	SW Ordinance Council 92121 - (MD clean)

	Item 5.	ORD: Cross Connection Control and Prevention Ordinance (PSHE 9/13/21)
	XC Ordinance Council 92121 - (MD clean)

	Bottom

